Seattle Pedestrian Advisory Board Meeting Minutes

Wednesday, 11 June 2008

Boards and Commissions Room, City Hall

6:00pm - 8:00pm

SPAB Members Present: Ben Smith, Vice-Chair; Chris Tachibana, Secretary; Jon Morgan; Kristen Lohse; Mark Bandy; Tom Williams, T. Frick McNamara
Also present: Jim Curtin (SDOT liaison); Brian Lee (SBAB liaison)

Presenters: Mike Rosen, Kristen Hauge and Rebecca Baker, PRR Consulting

Absent: Celeste Gilman, Chair; Paul Niebanck, Randy Earle, Howard Wu
Visitors: Mike Ramey; Jen Cole (Feet First); Michael Huber (Walkable Crown Hill) 

1.  Introductions and May meeting minute approval (6:00)
2. Public Comment (6:03)
Michael Hubert, representing Walkable Crown Hill, spoke about pedestrian safety and speed limits.  He thought the default speed limit in residential streets was 20 mph, but learned it is 25 mph.  He used a radar gun to check speeds and found people were going between 25-30.  He is recommending the City of Seattle declare 20 mph in residential areas.  Michael Hubert heard from SDOT that this would require action at the state level but Mark Bandy said this change would require no state approval (see note below).  Jon said we should bring it up with SPD.  Ben and Mark said street design is also a factor.  

Jen Cole said Feet First has a new walking map of West Seattle.  Their next project is kiosks and wayfinding along West Seattle walking paths.  She publicly acknowleged Nick Licata and Richard Conlin and Steve Sundquist from Seattle School Board, who supported Feet First's school events.  Mark asked about the kiosks.  Jim said SDOT is also working on wayfinding, at least for bicycles.   

3.  Pedestrian Safety in Schools campaign (6:15)

Jim Curtin, SDOT 

Mike Rosen said the goals are increasing pedestrianism and pedestrian safety.  Getting kids to walk more and be safe should encourage pedestrianism in their entire family, similar to how recycling programs became popular.

Rebecca Baker said they began with intelligence gathering.  Alta Planning and Deisgn did a best practices review to find models from other cities.  They wil be collaborating with existing organizations like SDOT and Feet First.  The scope of work includes four deliverables: in-school education; an encouragement program; communication; and marketing and evaluation.  She had a handout with a project outline and timeline.  So far, they have reviewed programs in other cities, reviewed Seattle documents like Master Plans, conducted stakeholder interviews, and had discussions with school districts about integrating their message into the curriculum.  They are currently exploring opportunities to collaborate with schools and existing organizations.  SDOT determined four schools to begin the program and PRR has met with officials and teachers at these schools.  They would like SPAB input in the early stages of program development.  She especially asked for input on evaluation and measurable components.

Mark has been walking his kids to various places and asked if this is aimed at all aspects of walking and biking, or focused only on travel to and from school.  Jim said the focus is pedestrian only but there's also a separate bicycle safety program.  Mike said the target is second and third graders, and focuses on basic pedestrian safety, whether it is walking to school or other places.  The message will come from the schools with students encouraged to practice with their family.  Mark suggested concentrating on walking where students live, because this is where they would walk most often, and need help with wayfinding.  He asked about walking exercises at the school.  Mike and Rebecca said there would be hands-on activities.  Jim said there are liability issues about leaving the school grounds.  Jen said there are some teachers who conduct walking field trips.  MIke said the pilot program will aim to initiate a minimum program that parents and teachers can build upon.  Mike Huber encouraged orienteering as well as basic safety. 

Mark asked about the timeline for evaluation and safety and hazard recognition training. Rebecca said the program is planned for 2008-2009 school year.  Mike said evaluation ideas include pledges to do activities (like making pedestrian map, keeping walking logs) and parental or teacher monitoring.  Mike said Alta Planning has determined that making eye contact is the most important thing to teach in pedestrian safety.  Mark, Kristen, T and Rebecca discussed how this and other ideas that are obvious to adults are difficult concepts for small kids and need to be taught differently.  Rebecca said a key to safety will be getting adults to walk with the kids.  
Jon, Rebecca, Jim and Mark discussed how school choice means many kids are bused to schools that are out of walking distance too far to, and how kids should be encouraged to walk to other destinations as substitutes.  T. and Mike Rosen discussed getting walking into the curriculum, but Mike said there was opposition, except in Physical Education which is not tied to the WASL.  Mark suggested targeting interns, who can have great influence on their students.  Ben, Rebecca, Mark, Michael Huber and T. suggested getting kids to encourage their parents to drive less, take Metro and walk more.  Jim will keep us updated on the program.

4.  Overview of Pedestrian aspects of City Budget and discussion (7:00)

Tom Williams

Tom said the economic downturn will affect the city's budget, but the city's two April economic forecasts predict it will not be as serious as other parts of the country.  Construction accounts for $0.23 of every dollar of sales tax revenue, and this will be down.  Real estate excise tax is predicted to be down 40% from last year.  New commitments include rising public safety and health care costs, the 10-year plan to end homelessness, hiring 20 new police officers per year, and the new jail.  Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) has more projects that can be funded.  

The CIP is a 6-year budgeting and planning document that is submitted at the same time as the budget.  For SPAB, the major item of concern is transportation.  Tom went over the annual budget development timeline, which begins in February with the budget usually adopted by the City Council in late November after public input in October.  For transportation, the major budget items are for rehab of existing facilities, increase in capacity and development of new facilities.  Tom said early input is important for getting requests granted.  Funds also come from federal and state grants. 

Ben, Mark and Tom discussed Bridging the Gap (BTG).  Tom said that BTG money will be given to the Spokane and Mercer projects.  He said if SPAB has ideas for projects, we need to get them to the Mayor and Council early.  The city goes to neighborhoods in the spring for input and Jim said many people have advocated sidewalks at the neighborhood meetings.  Tom said the Mayor and Council members are sympathetic to pedestrian issues but we will probably not get the same amount of money as last year.

Mike Huber asked about Bridging the Gap small projects grants.  Tom said BTG funds large projects $1.5 million annually. Small projects are largely funded by the Cumulative Reserve Fund, which gets money from, among other sources, the real estate excise tax.  Sidewalks are expensive and have a backlog.  Jim encouraged small project applications because SDOT would like to work toward that.
Ben asked about the competition for items within the budget and if Bridging the Gap offsets revenue loss.  Tom said revenue growth will slow, but Bridging the Gap is dedicated revenue for transportation. BTG revenue may increase because of higher-than-forecast revenue from the commercial parking tax..
Ben asked when budget drafts are available, but Jim and Tom said they are internal until given to the City Council.  Jon went to the May budget forum.  He talked to Nick Licata, who implied the Mercer street project would take money from pedestrian safety and Kristen said this point was in Licata's newsletter.  Tom said proposed funds for that project have increased but the exact amount is currently under discussion. SDOT maintains that both projects need to be done before the viaduct is torn down.  

projects.  

Jon asked about the increasing costs of projects and whether it would be worthwhile for SPAB to advocate more sidewalks now because while they cost more now than in the past, they may be even more expensive in the future.  Tom, T. and Mark discussed factors that could affect project costs, like changes in supply and demand, and rising transportation costs.  

Mark, Jim and Tom discussed how to find out about projects that neighborhoods have requested so we can support them.  Jim encouraged SPAB to get involved in this.  Mike Huber and Jim said to keep track of applications because projects that were not accepted earlier might be reconsidered.        

Brian said SBAB has not discussed the budget yet.

5.  Round Robin (7:40)

Ben reported on the recent pedestrian-bike-freight meeting.  They discussed a road diet proposal on Nickerson.  He was impressed with Grace Crunican's mediation and found the meeting interesting although not all groups were fully represented.  Mike Ramey initiated a discussion on road diets and Jim said Seattle leads the nation in lane miles reduced.  Ben later added to his Round Robin via email, that "The City is looking at expanding the "car-free" streets currently done on Lake Washington Blvd in the South End to some other streets around Seattle. The official city web page for this is still TBD (http://www.seattle.gov/waytogo/carfreedays.htm) but this blog post shows some of the streets being proposed:http://westseattleblog.com/blog/?p=8220"
Mark was also at the tri-group meeting.  His sense was that the road diet was presented as fairly definite and seemed bike-oriented.  The next meeting will discuss options.  Bike striping was discussed, including an incorrectly striped section at the Fremont bridge.  

Brian said Sean, the SBAB board chair, also mentioned the lack of freight representation at the meeting.  SBAB just met their SPD liaison (Lt. Taylor), who seemed to have both pedestrian and bike interests.  Seattle hosts a bike-walk conference in September.  SBAB will be giving a presentation on advisory boards during the conference and their monthly meeting will be at the conference, and will be open to the public.

Kristen said the first public meeting for the South Lake Union trail will be Tuesday from 4-7:30.  She will send details to the list.

T. reported on the Northgate cultural mobility audit, which included walking with a stroller, goggles to alter vision, earplugs, crutches and blindfolds.  Jacob Struiksma provided white canes.  The group noticed the importance of sidewalk width, landscaping vs. pavement, lack of sidewalk, grade changes and changes in material.  She will send a summary to the group.  She noticed that the audible crossing signals were not that helpful, because they distract from hearing traffic noise.  

Jon said publicizing walking audits might be a good project for the Outreach committee.  He'd like board input on what the committee should do.  He had copies of his spreadsheet on streetlight outages.  He has also been reporting on sidewalk repair needs.  He reported on a pedestrian who was hit by a car at 5th and Jackson, which is a major transit area and might be a place for a leading pedestrian signal.  Leading signals and "Barnes Dance"/pedestrian scramble crossings were discussed.  

Jim referred signal issues to SDOT signals, and said new guidelines mandate that all signals will soon be made into countdown signals.  Mark can report on signals next month.
7.  Upcoming Agenda Items (8:10)
Mark Bandy on proposed updates to the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, in particular the section related to changes in signal warrants and application of walk and countdown timer displays
SPAB-SPD Liaison Capt. Michael Fann

August Field Trip

8.  Adjourn (8:10)

Note:  on 30June2008, Mark Bandy sent this email with information relevant to the public comment and discussion on residential speed limits.

“Shown below are the portions of Seattle Municipal Code regarding speed limits. They are 25 mph unless otherwise specified, and otherwise specified is 30 mph for arterials and 15 mph for alleys.

State law allows local jurisdictions to go down to 20 mph speed limits (see RCW 46.61.415), which is what I was basing my comment on that no state law requires a change.”
SMC 11.52.060  Twenty-five m.p.h. speed limits.

Except in those instances where a different maximum lawful speed is

provided by this subtitle or otherwise, no person shall operate any

vehicle at speed in excess of twenty-five (25) miles per hour on any

street. (RCW 46.61.400(2)(a))

(Ord. 108200 Section 2(11.52.060), 1979.)

SMC 11.52.080  Thirty m.p.h. speed limits.

Subject to Section  11.52.020*LINK*, and except in those instances where a

different maximum lawful speed is provided by this subtitle or

otherwise, no person shall operate any vehicle at a speed in excess of

thirty (30) miles per hour on arterial streets.

(Ord. 108200 Section 2(11.52.080), 1979.)

SMC 11.52.120  Speed limit in alleys.

No person shall operate any vehicle at a speed in excess of fifteen

(15) miles per hour upon an alley. (RCW 46.61.415 (1)(c))

(Ord. 108200 Section 2(11.52.120), 1979.)

